
    LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

BUSINESS MEETING 

Thursday, January 19, 2023 – 7:00 p.m. 

EXECUTIVE SESSION – 6:00 p.m. 

NOTE: The meeting is being held as an in-person and virtual public meeting using Zoom. 

Directions on how to access the meeting online or via phone are available at 

lowerprovidence.org.  

▪ The meeting is video recorded for posting on the Township website.

▪ A video camera has been installed in the Township Auditorium for security purposes.

Call to Order 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings 

Roll Call:   

__ C. Coless __ J. Darby __ P. MacFarland __ G. Neights __ J. Sorgini __ A. Jeyapratap 

Chairman’s Comments 

1. Presentations

a. Student representative report – Ash Jeyapratap

2. Consent Agenda

a. Acceptance of the minutes of the Board of Supervisors business meeting of

December 15, 2022 and reorganization meeting of January 3, 2023

The following Meeting Minutes 

• Environmental Advisory Council

• Parks & Recreation Board

• Planning Commission – Not yet approved

• Sewer Authority

b. Monthly Reports - December

• Community Development

• Community Relations

• Finance

• Fire Marshal

• Human Resources

• Parks and Recreation

• Police

• Public Works



c. Fiscal Matters

1. Authorization for payment of bills: $861,278.36

2. Treasurer’s Report

3. Escrow Release

a. Eagleville Hospital, Phase 2 release #2 in the amount of

$479,314.17

b. 805 N. Park Avenue/Erb final release in the amount of $15,000.00

Motion to Accept Consent Agenda ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained ___ 

3. Old Business

a. Discussion of Audubon Square V Land Development Plan, Phase 2, 717 S.

Trooper Road

b. Discussion of Brightview Land Development Plan, Phase 1, 400 N. Park Avenue

c. Consideration of a Resolution establishing roles, responsibilities, and general

code of conduct for the Board of Supervisors

Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___

d. Consideration of appointment to Township boards/commissions/councils

Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___

4. New Business

a. Discussion of request for waiver of Subdivision and Land Development, Select

Pizza Grill, 711 S. Trooper Road

b. Consideration of Resolution 2023-09 amending Providence Greene Homeowners’

Association declaration

Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___

c. Authorization to sell vehicles and equipment at auction

Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___

d. Consideration of Resolution 2023-10 designating FEMA agent

Motion ___ Second ___ Vote ___ Abstained___

e. Discussion of Vietnam Veterans Memorial replica collaboration with Upper

Providence Township

f. General Discussion of Board of Supervisors 2023 Strategy and Goals

5. Announcements/Meetings

• Environmental Advisory Council – January 23 at 7:00 p.m.

• Planning Commission – January 25 at 7:00 p.m.

o Comprehensive Plan Public Hearing

• Zoning Hearing Board – January 26 at 7:00 p.m. - Cancelled

6. Comments and Other Business

7. Courtesy of Floor (not to exceed 3 minutes per person)

8. Adjournment

Next Meetings: February 2, 2023 

February 16, 2023 

The Board of Supervisors meets on the first and third Thursday of each month.  The agenda can be found 

approximately 3 to 5 days in advance on the Township website: www.lowerprovidence.org.  Click on the 

“Agenda” tab. 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/


Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
December 15, 2022 

Page 1 of 4 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS BUSINESS MEETING 

December 15, 2022 

____________________________________________________________________________________ 

Call to Order: Vice Chair Coless called the hybrid live/virtual meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Protocol for Hybrid Meetings: Vice Chair Coless provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

Roll Call:  

a. The following Board members were in attendance: Vice Chair Coless, Supervisors Darby,

MacFarland and Sorgini. Chairman Neights was absent.

b. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael Clarke, Township Solicitor; Tim

Woodrow, Township Engineer, Mike Mrozinski, Community Development Director; Rich Lafiata,

Director of Finance; Detective Michael Higgins, and Student Representative Kaitlyn Phan.

Vice Chair’s Comments 

Vice Chair Coless announced that an executive session was held prior to the meeting on December 15, 

2022, to discuss personnel and legal matters.  

Vice Chair Coless announced that a proclamation was to be presented to Permit Administrator Joan 

Holley recognizing her service and retirement. Mr. Mrozinski read the proclamation and made the 

presentation to Mrs. Holley.  

1) Presentations

A) Annual contributions were presented to:

i) Visiting Nurse Association

ii) Victim Services Center of Montgomery County

iii) Family Services on Montgomery County

iv) Lower Providence EMS/Medic 322 and Community Center

v) Lower Providence Fire Department

B) Student representative report – Kaitlyn Phan

i) Ms. Phan, a student at Methacton High School, shared news and announcements from the

school district: A lot extension has made additional parking for juniors available; two shows

are planned for Dec. 21 at the Arcola Intermediate School planetarium; the high school’s

winter concert will be held Dec. 21, and schools will be closed for break from Dec. 23 to Jan.

2.

2) Consent Agenda

A) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the consent agenda, moving the

minutes of the Board of Supervisors business meeting of December 1, 2022 into the record.

Supervisor Darby seconded the motion.

i) The consent agenda also included:

(1) Meeting minutes of the Environmental Advisory Council, Parks & Recreation Board,

Planning Commission, and Sewer Authority



Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
December 15, 2022 

Page 2 of 4 

(2) Departmental monthly reports for November 2022

(3) Payment of bills in the amount of $411, 884.44

(4) Treasurer’s Report

(5) Escrow Releases: 109 River Road release #2 in the amount of $40,782.75 and Woodland

Avenue tract release #2 in the amount of $141,865.45

(6) Authorization to advertise the Board’s reorganization meeting for January 3, 2023 at 6:30

p.m. and the Board of Auditors meeting for January 4, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.

(7) Approval of 2023 holidays

ii) There was no public comment.

iii) The motion passed 4-0.

3) Old Business

A) Consideration of Ordinance 675 amending Chapter 11A of Lower Providence Township Code,

Environmental Advisory Council ordinance regarding membership

i) Mr. Mentry said the item would be tabled to allow appropriate advertisement of the

ordinance.

B) Consideration of bid award for Natural Resources Conservation Services (NRCS) grant for

Redwing drainage improvement project

i) Mr. Mentry explained that a resident had applied on their own for an NRCS grant for a

drainage improvement project. The Township is serving as the required sponsor with no

financial obligation. The low bid amount submitted for the work is higher than the grant

funds received from state and federal agencies. Both have agreed to additional funding to

meet the bid, but the revised amount cannot be processed prior to the scheduled start of work.

In the meantime, the homeowner has agreed to provide a bridge loan of $10,000 to meet the

program deadline.

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve the bid award to Site Preparation

LLC in the amount of $97,939.00 conditioned on the property owner providing the bridge

loan. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion.

iii) There was no public comment.

iv) The motion passed 4-0.

4) New Business

A) Consideration of Fund Balance Policy

i) Mr. Lafiata said that as discussed at the Board’s December 1, 2022 meeting, a Fund Balance

Policy has been drafted for the Board’s consideration, replacing a policy adopted in 2012.

The proposed policy recommends the General Fund maintain a minimum unassigned fund

balance of 25% or three months of the next year’s operating budget, compared to the current

policy of 5%-7%. He said staff intends to revisit the policy in 2023 after the completion of

the 2022 audit to consider formal fund balance replenishment plans and guidelines for

surpluses.

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the Fund Balance Policy,

seconded by Supervisor Sorgini.

iii) There was no public comment.

iv) The motion passed 4-0.

B) Commit Fund Balance equal to 25% of the 2023 General Fund operating expenditures per the

Fund Balance Policy



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
December 15, 2022 
 
 

Page 3 of 4 

 

   

i) Mr. Mentry said this will be an annual action taken by the Board. He said for the 2023 budget 

designating 25% of the General Fund operating expenditures to the Fund Balance amounts to 

$3,264,392.00 

ii) Supervisor MacFarland noted that because the commitment is a percentage of the operating 

budget which is anticipated to increase every year, the amount designated to the fund balance 

therefore would increase yearly. 

iii) There was discussion on provisions should the fund balance fall below the target. 

iv) Supervisor Sorgini confirmed that the current Fund Balance is well above the threshold being 

established. 

v) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to commit a Fund Balance of 25% of the 2023 

General Fund operating expenditures. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the motion. 

vi) There was no public comment. 

vii) The motion passed 4-0. 

C) Consideration of Resolution 2022-37 authorizing creation of a Municipal Complex fund 

i) Mr. Mentry said there was a presentation and discussion at the December 1, 2022 Board 

meeting regarding excess fund balance beyond was committed in the 25% that included 

establishing a new fund for major capital improvements to the Township property. It was 

clarified that the fund would be established and funds moved before the end of 2022.  

ii) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-37, seconded 

by Supervisor Darby.  

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

D) Consideration of Resolution 2022-38 authorizing Capital Fund, Municipal Complex Fund and 

Stormwater Fund transfers 

i) Mr. Mentry said the resolution authorizes moving $1 million into the newly-created 

Municipal Complex Fund, $600,000 into the Capital Reserve Fund and $300,000 into the 

Stormwater Fund. All of the money is currently sitting in the General Fund in excess of the 

balance established to be the target per the new fund balance policy. 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve Resolution 2022-38, seconded by 

Supervisor MacFarland. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 4-0. 

E) Consideration of proposal for grant writing services 

i) Mr. Mentry said a proposal was before the Board from Cedarville Engineering Group and 

had been discussed during the budget workshops. The cost was included in the adopted 2023 

budget. He said he is seeking approval of the proposal now in order to start formulating a 

grant plan, but no costs will be incurred under the 2022 budget. The proposal for $26,000 

covers four full grant applications. 

ii) There was discussion about latitude for smaller grants. 

iii) MOTION: Supervisors MacFarland made a motion to approve the proposal from Cedarville 

Engineering Group for grant writing services, seconded by Supervisor Darby. 

iv) There was no public comment. 

v) The motion passed 4-0. 

F) Acceptance of resignation of Joseph Lulis from the Environmental Advisory Council 

i) Vice Chair Coless said Mr. Lulis, who had served on the EAC and the Comprehensive Plan 

Steering Committee, had moved out of the Township. Mr. Mentry stated that acceptance of 

his resignation is a formality. 



Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Meeting 
December 15, 2022 

Page 4 of 4 

ii) MOTION: Supervisor Darby made a motion to accept the resignation of Mr. Lulis. Vice

Chair Coless seconded the motion

iii) There was no public comment.

iv) The motion passed 4-0.

5) Announcements/Meetings

A) Environmental Advisory Council – Dec. 19 at 7:00 p.m.

B) Parks & Recreation Board – Dec. 20 at 7:00 p.m.

C) Zoning Hearing Board – Dec. 22 - Cancelled

D) Planning Commission – Dec. 28 – Cancelled

E) The Administration Office will be closed Dec. 23, Dec. 26 and Jan. 2 for the Christmas and New

Year’s holidays.

6) Comments and other Business

A) Supervisor Sorgini thanked Mr. Lulis for his service.  He reported on the Sewer Authority’s

December meeting and said the Authority’s next construction project is due to begin in January.

He said it is important for residents to note that is an independent sewer authority that is working

to keep rates low. He noted that the Authority’s efforts to repair and replace lines throughout the

Township have resulted in the pumping stations no longer having surcharges during heavy

rainfall.

B) Supervisor MacFarland thanked the Township employees for their extraordinary efforts on the

Caring and Sharing holiday gift program for less fortunate residents of the community.

C) Supervisor Darby wished the Township staff and community Happy Holidays.

D) Vice Chair Coless said details had been finalized for the community holiday party community to

be held Dec. 23 at Chadwick’s from 4:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. with to-go meals available. She

thanked Audubon Land Development and many volunteers for stepping in to help. Questions and

RSVPs can be directed to ccoless@lowerprovidence.org.

7) Courtesy of the Floor

A) There was no public comment.

8) Adjournment

A) MOTION:  Supervisor Darby made a motion to adjourn. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the

motion. The motion passed 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:50 p.m.

Reorganization Meeting: January 3, 2023 @ 6:30 p.m. 

Next Business Meeting: January 19, 2023 @ 7:00 p.m. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 1 of 7 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS REORGANIZATION MEETING 

JANUARY 3, 2023 

_________________________________________________________________________ 

 

The Township Manager acted as temporary chair for the purpose of organization. 

 

Call to Order: Township Manager E.J. Mentry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Protocol for Hybrid Meeting: Mr. Mentry provided an overview of the protocols for public 

participation for members of the public attending the meeting virtually over Zoom. 

 

Announcement of Executive Session: Prior to the meeting on January 3, 2023, an executive session 

was held to discuss personnel matters. 

 

Roll Call:   

The following members were in attendance: Supervisors Cara Coless, Janine Darby, Peter MacFarland, 

Gary Neights and Jason Sorgini. Also in attendance were: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager; Michael 

Clarke, Township Solicitor; Mike Mrozinski, Community Development Director; Rich Lafiata, Director 

of Finance; Police Chief Michael Jackson; and Student Representative Kaitlyn Phan. 

 

1) Nomination and Election of Chair 

A) NOMINATIONS: Supervisors Neights and Darby nominated Cara Coless for Chair.  

i) Cara Coless was unanimously elected Chair.  

2) Election of Vice-Chair 

A) NOMINATIONS: Supervisors Neights and Coless nominated Dr. Janine Darby for Vice-Chair.  

i) Supervisor Darby was unanimously elected Vice-Chair. 

3) Approval of Township Manager Employment Agreement Addendum 

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve the addendum to the 

Township Manager Employment Agreement, specifying the manager’s salary for 2023. 

Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

Administrative Appointments 

4) Appointment of Secretary - E.J. Mentry 

5) Assistant Secretary - Denise Walsh 

6) Treasurer - E.J. Mentry 

7) Assistant Treasurer - Rich Lafiata 

8) Open Records Officer - Denise Walsh 

9) Alternate Open Records Officer - E.J. Mentry 

10) Police Department Open Records Officer - Jill Sauermelch 

11) Deputy Fire Marshal / Assistant Emergency Management Coordinator - Bill Hine 

12) Zoning Officer - Mike Mrozinski 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 2 of 7 

13) Building Code Official - Brad Bollinger 

i) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve the administrative appointments 

listed in Agenda Items 4 through 13. Chair Coless seconded the motion. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

 

Board/Council/Commission Appointments 

It was noted that all appointments are conditioned on the signing and submittal of the Township 

Ethics Verification Form. 

14) Appointment to Library Board of Trustees (two (2) three-year terms) 

A) NOMINATIONS: Supervisor Neights and Vice-Chair Darby nominated Karen Stine and Raji 

Venkatesan. Supervisors MacFarland and Sorgini nominated Gary Brown. 

i) There was discussion about considering each appointment individually. Supervisor Neights 

and Darby agreed to amend their nomination to do so.  

B) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to appoint Karen Stine to the Library Board. 

Supervisor Darby seconded the motion.  

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

C) MOTION: Supervisor Neights, seconded by Vice-Chair Darby, made a motion to appoint Ravi 

Venkatesan to the Library Board.  

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 3-2, with Supervisors MacFarland and Sorgini opposing. 

D) With the two seats filled, there was no other vote. 

15) Appointment to the Sewer Authority (One (1) five-year term) 

A) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to appoint Fred Walker to serve on the Sewer 

Authority. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the motion.   

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

16) Appointment to Planning Commission (Two (2) four-year term) 

A) MOTION:  Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to appoint Patrick Neary to the Planning 

Commission, seconded by Supervisor MacFarland. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii)  The motion passed 5-0. 

B) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to appoint Gary Brown to the Planning 

Commission. The motion failed for lack of a second. 

C) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to appoint Samantha Grant to the Planning 

Commission, seconded by Vice-Chair Darby. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 4-1 with Supervisor MacFarland opposing. 

17) Appointment to Zoning Hearing Board by Resolution #2023-01 (One (1) five-year term)  

A) NOMINATIONS: Chair Coless recommended advancing Zoning Hearing Board alternate 

Randy Klein to regular membership for a full 5-year term.  

B) MOTION: Supervisor Neights, seconded by Chair Coless, made a motion to appoint Randy 

Klein to the Zoning Hearing Board for full membership for a five-year term. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 3 of 7 

C) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to appoint Gary Brown to fill a five-year 

term as a Zoning Hearing Board alternate, seconded by Supervisor Nights. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

D) MOTION: Chair Coless, seconded by Supervisor Sorgini, made a motion to appoint Tejal 

Mehta to fill the unexpired Zoning Hearing Board alternate position vacated Randy Klein. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

E) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to approve Resolution 2023-01 approving the 

appointments to the Zoning Hearing Board. Supervisor Darby seconded the motion.  

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

18) Appointment to Parks & Recreation Board (one (1) five-year terms) 

A) NOMINATIONS: Supervisor Neights and Vice-Chair Darby nominated Kasey Walker. 

Supervisors MacFarland and Sorgini nominated Dr. Jeff Scott. 

B) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to appoint Kasey Walker to the Parks and 

Recreation Board, seconded by Chair Coless. 

i) There was no public comment 

ii) The motion passed 3-2, with Supervisors MacFarland and Sorgini opposed. 

iii) There was no other vote taken as the position was filled. 

19) Appointment to Vacancy Board One (1) four-year term 

A) MOTION: Vice-Chair Darby made a motion to appoint Jeanine Sheldon as Vacancy Board 

Chair. Supervisor Neights seconded the motion. 

i) Mr. Mentry explained that in the event of an unexpected vacancy on the Board of 

Supervisors, the Board has 30 days to fill the position. If within that timeframe it cannot and 

there is a deadlock, the Vacancy Board Chair would step in. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

20) Appointment to UCC Board of Appeals (one (1) Three-year Term) 

A)  MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to appoint Steve Gillan to the UCC Board of 

Appeals, seconded by Supervisor Sorgini. 

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

21) Ordinance 675 amending Chapter 11A of the Lower Providence Township Code, Environmental 

Advisory Council ordinance regarding membership 

A) Mr. Mentry explained that this agenda item had been tabled at a previous meeting because of an 

advertising error. The ordinance expands the membership of the council from 5 to 7 and changes 

the authority for selecting the chair from the Board of Supervisors to the EAC. 

B) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to adopt Ordinance 675, seconded by Supervisor 

Sorgini. 

C) There was no public comment. 

D) The motion passed 5-0. 

22) Environmental Advisory Board (two (2) three-year terms, one (1) term expiring in 2023, one (1) 

one-year term and one (1) two-year term 

A) NOMINATIONS: Supervisor Neights nominated Laura Winslow to fill an unexpired term on 

the EAC. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 4 of 7 

B) There was discussion regarding the reappointment of the two sitting members and deferring a 

vote on the other vacancies until a future meeting. 

C) Supervisor Neights withdrew his nomination. 

D) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to reappoint Erin McCool and Amber Minnick to 

the Environmental Advisory Council for three-year terms. Supervisor Darby seconded the 

motion.  

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0. 

iii) The remaining appointments were deferred. 

 

Consultant Appointments 

Mr. Mentry reviewed the list of current consultants and noted that all had submitted fee schedules for 

2023 with their hourly fees. The consultants considered for appointment are: 

23) Consulting Engineer - Woodrow & Associates with Tim Woodrow as the engineer of record 

24) Traffic Engineer - McMahon Associates with Casey Moore as the engineer of record 

25) Landscape Architectural Consultant - Thomas Comitta Associates with Thomas Comitta as the LA 

of record 

26) Actuary for Township Pension Plans, Township Employees’ Pension Plan and the Defined 

Contribution Plan - Municipal Finance Partners, Charles Friedlander 

27) Labor Attorney - Eckert, Seamans, Cherin & Mellot with Scott Blissman as the attorney of record 

28) Solicitor - Rudolph Clarke LLC with Michael Clarke as the solicitor of record 

A) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to approve the appointments listed in Agenda 

Items 23 through 28 in accordance with the fee schedules provided to the Board. Supervisor 

Sorgini seconded the motion. 

i) Supervisor MacFarland noted that there were no significant fee increases with the exception 

of the actuary whose increase was due to the actuarial valuation, which is done every two 

years, occurring in 2023. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

29) Fixing of Compensation for Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor 

A) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to set compensation for the solicitor selected by 

the Zoning Hearing Board at the same rate as submitted by Miller, Turetsky, Rule and 

McLennan, not to exceed $20,000. Supervisor MacFarland seconded the motion.  

i) There was no public comment. 

ii) The motion passed 5-0.  

30) Appointment of Board Liaisons 

A) Chair Coless announced the following Board liaison appointments: 

i) Business Development Committee: Chair Coless and Supervisor MacFarland 

ii) Emergency Services Committee: Vice-Chair Darby and Supervisor Sorgini 

iii) Environmental Advisory Council: Supervisor Neights 

iv) Library Board: Supervisor Sorgini 

v) Parks & Recreation Board: Vice-Chair Darby 

vi) Pension Committee: Supervisors Neights and Sorgini  

vii) Planning Commission: Supervisor Neights  

viii) Sewer Authority: Supervisor Sorgini 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 5 of 7 

ix) Chair Coless recommended the formation of an Intermunicipal Consortium to meet once per 

quarter with neighboring municipalities attended by two supervisors on a rotating basis. 

31) Resolutions 

A) Resolution No. 2023-02 authorizing the appropriate Township Officials to affix signatures on 

checks 

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-02 authorizing 

appropriate Township Officials to affix signatures on checks. Supervisor Sorgini seconded 

the motion.  

ii) There was no public comment.  

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

B) Resolution No. 2023-03 designating depositories for Township funds 

i) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-03 designating 

depositories for Township funds. Vice Chair Darby seconded the motion. 

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

C) Resolution No. 2023-04 establishing the amount of the Treasurer’s and Assistant Treasurer’s 

Bond at $1,000,000 which will apply to the Township Manager-Secretary and Finance Director, 

respectively 

i) MOTION: Supervisors Neights made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-04 to establish the 

amount of the Treasurer’s and Assistant Treasurer’s Bond at $1,000,000. Supervisor Sorgini 

seconded the motion.  

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii) The motion passed 5-0. 

D) Resolution No. 2023-05 establishing the Police Officers contributions to the Police Pension Plan 

for the Year 2023 

i) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-05 establishing the 

Police Officers contributions to the Police Pension for the year 2023. Supervisor Sorgini 

seconded the motion.  

ii) Supervisors Neights confirmed that the amount is set by the collective bargaining agreement. 

iii) There was no public comment.  

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

E) Resolution No. 2023-06 establishing member contributions to the Employees’ Pension Fund for 

the Year 2023 

i) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to adopt Resolution 2032-06 establishing 

member contributions to the Employee Pension Fund for the year 2023. Supervisor Sorgini 

seconded the motion. 

ii) Supervisor Neights confirmed that the amount is set by the collective bargaining agreement.  

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

F) Resolution No. 2023-07 Appointing the Certified Public Accounting Firm of BBD LLP to Serve 

as Auditors to Audit the Accounts of Lower Providence Township for Fiscal Year 2022 

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to adopt Resolution 2023-07 appointing 

BBD LLP certified public accounts to audit the Township accounts for the fiscal year 2022. 

Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion.  

ii) There was no public comment. 

iii)  The motion passed 5-0. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 6 of 7 

G) Resolution No. 2023-08 approving the 2023 Fee Schedule 

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion, seconded by Vice-Chair Darby, to 

approve the 2023 fee schedule. 

ii) Notable increases are the business registration fee from $100 to $150, the first increase since 

its inception in 2006, and summer camp fees which were raised primarily to address staffing 

issues. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0.  

H) Discussion of a resolution establishing roles, responsibilities and general code of conduct for the 

Board of Supervisors 

i) There was consensus that the draft resolution provided needed guidance and was a good 

overview of the expectations for board members. 

ii) The supervisors were asked to provide comments and changes to the Chair and Manager; the 

revised draft will be given to Solicitor for review. 

32) Certification of Delegates and Voting Delegate to PSATS Annual State Convention 

A) MOTION: Supervisor Sorgini made a motion to certify Chair Coless as the voting delegate and 

Mr. Mentry as the alternate for the 2023 PSATS Annual State Convention. Supervisor 

MacFarland seconded the motion.   

i) There was no public comment.  

ii) The motion passed 5-0.  

33) Approval and authorization to advertise 2023 meeting schedule 

A) MOTION:  Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to approve and authorize advertisement of 

the 2023 meeting schedule as presented. Supervisor Sorgini seconded the motion.  

i) Supervisor Sorgini recommended moving the meeting scheduled for Dec. 7, which is the first 

day of Hanukkah, to Wednesday, Dec. 6. 

ii) There was no public comment.  

iii) The motion passed 5-0 with the schedule to include the date change. 

34) Other Business 

A) Authorization to advertise for bids for installation of Accessible Pedestrian System (APS) at 

Ridge Pike/Parklane Drive 

i) MOTION: Supervisor Neights made a motion to advertise for bids for the APS system at 

Ridge Pike/Parklane Drive, seconded by Supervisor Sorgini. 

ii) There was no public comment.  

iii) The motion passed 5-0.  

B) Acceptance of retirement of Susan Law who left full-time employment with the Township on 

December 31, 2022. 

i) MOTION: Supervisor MacFarland made a motion to accept the retirement of Susan Law, 

seconded by Supervisor Neights. 

ii) Supervisor MacFarland noted that Ms. Law’s retirement, after many years of service, was 

accepted with gratitude and appreciation. 

iii) There was no public comment. 

iv) The motion passed 5-0. 

35) Announcements 

A) Upcoming meetings:  

• Parks & Recreation Board - Jan. 17 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Environmental Advisory Council - Jan. 23 at 7:00 p.m. 



 

Lower Providence Township Board of Supervisors Reorganization Meeting 
January 3, 2023 

Page 7 of 7 

• Planning Commission - Jan.25 at 7:00 p.m. 

• Zoning Hearing Board - Jan.26 at 7:00 p.m. 

B) Chair Coless recommended continuing the Board’s strategic planning sessions, with the public 

workshops convening after the adjournment of one or more future board meetings. 

i) Vice-Chair Darby noted feedback from the community is an important part of the planning 

sessions. 

36) Courtesy of the Floor – no public comment 

37) Adjournment 

A) MOTION: Vice-Chair Darby made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Supervisor Sorgini 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 5-0.  The meeting adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 

 

Next Business Meeting: January 19, 2023 

    February 2, 2023 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Minutes of Lower Providence Environmental Advisory Council Meeting – November 21, 2022 
 
The meeting began at 7:04 PM.  Council members Erin McCool, Amber Minnick, Douglas White, 
John Zollers, Sameeksha Panda, Jessica Gabell, Sarah Kim and Madison Roeger were present. 
 
1. Approval of Minutes. The minutes from the October 2022 meeting were approved 4-0, Mr. 
White making the motion for approval and Ms. Minnick seconding.   
 
2. Old Business 
 
a) The Township is currently soliciting interest in filling open seats on the Council and other 
Township boards. Ms. McCool also noted prior to the meeting that Council member Joseph Lulis 
has resigned.  
 

i) Ms. McCool explained to the Council that the Board of Supervisors will be reviewing 
many existing Township ordinances in the coming year, which will be a good opportunity 
for the Council to advise the Board on possible changes.  

 
ii) Ms. McCool advised the Council that Supervisor Gary Neights and Township Manager 
E.J. Mentry are reviewing the addition of members to the Council, creating the position of 
Associate Member, and allowed the Council itself to appoint the chairperson. 

 
b) Council members were advised of an update to Pennsylvania Sunshine requirements. It was 
noted that the Council is already generally in compliance with these requirements.  
 
c) Subcommittee Reports  
  
 Education / Communication 
  

1. Ms. McCool noted the availability of a graphic design available for possible use on a 
reusable bag program and proposed purchasing the image from the designer for this 
purpose. Ms. McCool was to discuss the possibility with the Township Manager for further 
discussion at the December meeting.  
 
2. [No notes?] 
 
3. The Perkiomen Watershed Conservancy is working on a stream monitoring program to 
be presented to the Council in 2023. Resident Laura Winslow noted that a general stream 
study of the Skippack Creek watershed is being pursued by State Representative Joe 
Webster. 
 
4. Ms. Minnick met with Township staff to set up the Council Facebook and Instagram 
accounts. Ms. Minnick will manage these accounts and oversee content generated by 
Council members and student representatives along with Ms. McCool. Two (2) posts per 
month will be the minimum target. Mr. Zollers asked if the accounts can also be used to 
solicit input from residents on Council initiatives to general assent. 
 
5. Ms. McCool volunteered to take the lead on the Green Sustainability awards.  



 
 Stormwater 
  

No updates  
 

 Built Infrastructure / Ecological Restoration 
 

Ms. McCool noted the need to develop a process and limit comment to public meetings 
with regard to future comments by the Council on development plans. Mr. Zollers 
commented on some of the difficulties involved in reviewing development plans, including 
the need to become more generally familiar with Township procedures regarding 
proposed development.  

 
Ms. Minnick noted that Jean Akers of the Parks and Recreation Board will present to the 
Council on the state of the park tree planting plan.  
 
Ms. Minnick presented her research on the requirements for Lower Providence to become 
an  Audubon Bird Town. A three-person committee is needed (which Mr. Zollers offered to 
join). There is a requirement to develop specific bird-friendly goals for the Township and 
demonstrate progress.  

 
 Green Energy 
 

Mr. White presented on the concept of Conservation Subdivisions as presented by the 
Chester County Planning Commission, a way to arrange housing on a plot of land and 
preserve most of the land as open space. Mr. Zollers noted that the layouts provided by the 
Chester County Planning Commission still represent isolated housing subdivisions that 
require residents to drive for most purposes.  
 
Mr. White proposed to update the Township Sustainability Resolution to set concrete goals 
and a current baseline for comparison, create a position of Sustainability Manager 
(possibly to be shared with neighboring municipalities), and proposed second resolution 
relating to community development patterns to address previous comments by Mr. Zollers.  
 
Ms. Minnick provided an update on her research into tabletop solar chargers, particularly 
the Sunvolt Sprint, already purchased by West Norriton and Lower Gwynedd townships. 
With installation the cost for one unit is $3,250 plus shipping. Ms. Winslow noted this 
would be useful for the MARA baseball fields, and that organizations like Mascaro and 
Audubon Land may have interest in contributing towards the costs.  

 
d. The Council Workplan is to be updated to include several new initiatives: 

1. Development Plan Review 
2. Audubon Bird-Town Application 
3. Proposals for FEMA property buyouts 
4. Proposals for gathering information and insights from the community at large 

 
3. New Business. 
 



None. 
 
4. Comments and Other Business. Mr. Mentry to further review possible acquisition of solar 
power station for Township parks / events.  
 
5. Courtesy of the Floor. Resident Laura Winslow provided the following comments: 
 

• Ross Snook of New Hanover Township has developed an online tool to help 
municipalities manage stormwater. 

• FEMA purchase of properties damaged in Hurricane Ida has been delayed, but trees 
are being planted by community volunteers with landowners permission.  

• Author Doug Tallamy is coming out with a new book. 
• A “Friends of Eagleville Park” group may be helpful in accelerating progress in 

restoration of Eagleville Park.  
• An e-mailed newsletter would be valuable for keeping connections with interested 

community residents on environmental issues. The Bird-Town application and 
membership could be a good hook to start a newsletter.  

 
Resident Julia Nakhleh recommended that decals be installed to advised visitors of the 
Township’s use of clean energy, efficient systems, etc.  
 
6. Adjournment. Mr. Zollers made a motion to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mr. White, 
which passed 4-0.  



 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP     

PARKS & RECREATION 

November 15, 2022, MEETING MINUTES 

 

1) Call to Order. 

A)  Amy Johnston-Smith called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m.  

2) Pledge of Allegiance 

3) Roll Call: 

A) The following Parks & Recreation board members were in attendance: Amy Johnston-Smith, Erin Di 

Paolo, Michelle Brown, Stephanie Padula and Ray Lotfi. Beth Ann Mazza and Jean Akers were absent 

B) Also, in attendance:  Jane Delaney, Director, and Karen Hegedus, Recreational Superintendent and 

Student Rep. Parmesh Sivakumar and Sameeksha Panda. Riley McDonald was absent. 

4) Meeting Minutes: 

A) Review/Approve meeting minutes of October 18, 2022. 

B)  MOTION: Michelle Brown made a motion to approve minutes of October 18, 2022, Ray Lotfi 

seconded the motion. The motion passed 7-0. 

 

5) Old Business  

A) Trunk or Treat event, we had 21 Trunkers and more than 400 people enjoying them. 

B) Kids Night Out we had 8 children participate in the evening’s events. 

 

6) New Business 

A) Trees were ordered for Eskie Park and will be installed by Colonial Gardens (4 River Birch & 3 

Northern Red Oak) in the end of November. 

B) UPCOMING PROGRAMS AND EVENTS 

(1) Caring and Sharing Thanksgiving – Karen Barron heads this program, and we will help 12 families 

this year. Accepting donations and the stockings for the Angel Tree are ready. 

(2) Pet Phots December 1st from 6pm-8pm.  

(3) Planning of the Annual Community Tree Lighting December 2, 2022 – 6:30pm 

(4) Santa Hotline – Need to confirm with Tom from the Optimist, scheduled for December 6th & 7th. 

(5) Senior Games Volunteers are needed for May 1st – May 5th 

 

7)   Board Comments  

A)  Ray Lotfi was asking about the trees being replaced by Arrowhead School construction. Also, brought 

up an idea of rent out space for residents to create vegetable gardens. 

  

8)  Supervisor Liaison Report 

Cara Coless was absent 

 

9) Motion to Adjourn. 

A) MOTION:  Erin Di Paolo made a motion to adjourn. Michelle Brown seconded the motion. The motion 

passed 7-0. The meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 

 

Next Meeting: December 20, 2022 





























LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

DECEMBER 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 1 of 2 1/11/2023 

 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 

Communications / Community Outreach 

 

Website and social media posts of note:  

• Holiday office closures 

• Job posting: Social Services Liaison 

• Share of Police post: Icy road conditions 

• Job posting: Front Office Liaison 

• Photos of annual BOS donations   

• Joan Holley retirement 

• Share of Police post: Drug & Alcohol presentations at Methacton High School 

• Community Dinner 

• Share LP Police post – police activity Level Road 

• Caring & Sharing program 

• Board, commission meetings 

• Good Morning LP posts 
 

 

Work on the winter newsletter was finalized during the month; delivery is slated for late January.  

 

I assisted at the Parks and Recreation tree lighting event on Dec. 2. 

 

Administration 

I continued work on responsibilities related to the Board of Supervisors’ reorganization. Work 

also was started on correspondence and updates that will need to be completed following the 

meeting. 

 

Right-to-Know Office 

During the month, requests for information under the Right-to-Know Law were logged and 

processed, totaling 7 police and 12 non-police. (Copies of reports prepared as a result of an 

accident investigation conducted by the Lower Providence Township Police Department are now 

obtained through Carfax.) 

 

ON-GOING RESPONSIBILITIES 
 

Communications 

▪ Website posts, updates 

▪  Facebook, Twitter and Instagram posts  

▪ Press releases 

▪ Constant Contact emails 

▪ Cable Access Channel posts 

▪ Trash & recycling concerns 

 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

COMMUNITY RELATIONS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

DECEMBER 2022 

Denise Walsh Page 2 of 2 1/11/2023 

 

 

Administration 

 

▪ Weekly email to Board of Supervisors with informational items 

▪ Legal advertisements as needed 

▪ Scheduling, correspondence and miscellaneous tasks as needed 

▪ Preparation and distribution of Board of Supervisors’ agenda packets 

▪ Completion of post-Board meeting tasks, including posting of meeting summary and 

approved minutes on website 

▪ Scheduling, setup of auditorium 

▪ Attendance at various meetings; preparation and distribution of meeting notes 

▪ Maintenance of Resolution, Minute and Ordinance books 
 

Meetings / Training 
▪ Board of Supervisors - Dec. 1, 15 (prepared minutes) 

▪ Staff meetings - Dec. 6, 20 

▪ PSATS webinar “Preparation for 2023 Organization Meeting” - Dec. 13 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

Denise Walsh 

Community Relations Coordinator 



 

 

           LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
             100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

          Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

         Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 
 

 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

   

FROM: Rich Lafiata & Susan Law 

   

DATE:  January 11, 2022 

 

SUBJECT: December 2022 Finance Department Monthly Report   

 

 

Budget 

• Attended the December 1, 2022 & December 15, 2022, Board of Supervisors 

meetings 

• Loaded 2023 Adopted Budget in Freedom Software Systems 

• Uploaded 2023 Adopted Budget to Township Website 

 

Payroll 

• Processed payroll with cleaning, clothing allowance and education incentives for 

police officers 

• Entered 2023 holidays in Paychex 

• Updated 2023 employee pay rates  

• Discussed various time and attendance matters with Human Resources 

• Reconciled benefit time for various employees 

 

Miscellaneous 

• Updated Fund Balance Policy for December 15, 2022, Board of Supervisors 

meeting 

• Prepared Resolution 2022-37 which created the Municipal Complex Fund 

• Prepared Resolution 2022-38 allowing transfers of funds to the Capital Fund, 

Stormwater Fund and Municipal Complex Fund 

• Updated 2023 Fee Schedule for Township Reorganization Meeting 

• Updated bank signature cards for Township Reorganization meeting 

• Reinvested matured Certificate of Deposit (CD) with T.D Bank 

• Discussed 2023 ARPA and Capital Fund purchases with various directors to 

ensure the Township has enough liquid cash available when payments are due 

• Attended Delaware Valley Insurance Trust meeting to review 2023 insurance 

policies 



 

 

• Investigated legal invoices per Board of Supervisors request  

• Completed 2022 Auditor Reorganization meeting minutes for 2023 Auditor Re-

Organization meeting 

• Drafted 2023 Auditor Re-organization meeting agenda  

• Registered Township with State and National Government Finance Officers 

Association 

• Contacted CBIZ to reconcile 2022 401a and 457 contributions 

• Worked with I.T. Support to setup new Finance Director on various computer 

systems. 

 

Ongoing tasks  

• Cash Flow, Revenue and Expenditure, Treasurer’s and Revenue Trends reports 

completed 

• Follow the purchasing policy for proper approval of all purchases. Review open 

Purchase Orders 

• Distribute for approval, enter, and pay invoices. 

o Follow up with vendors regarding unpaid/past due invoices. 

• Daily reconciliation of receipts for front counter, permits and LPT rec.  

• Bill developers/residents for legal/engineering, alarm violations and other fees 

due the Township. 

• Review all entries to General Ledger. 

• Reconcile all bank accounts. 

• Transfer funds to the Library.  

• Process Payroll for December 16, 2022 & December 30, 2022 pay dates.  

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Fire Marshal & Emergency Management Coordinator 

December 2022 Report 

 

During the month of December 2022:  

• Lower Providence Fire Department responded to 49 emergency incidents within the 

Township 

• Participated in Montgomery County Emergency Management in-service training 

• Met with Audubon Water and their lawyer to discuss ongoing issues 

• Investigated one building fire 

o Limerick Township – Ruled undetermined 

• Made donation requests to Kidde and First Alert on behalf of the Fire Department for 

carbon monoxide alarms 

• Received personal protective equipment from PEMA 

o Placed in emergency management trailer 

• Participated in a webinar hosted by NOAA on extreme weather and climate 

preparedness 

• Applied to the National Fire Academy to attend their forensic interviewing class 

• Completed IS 2700, 2900 and 2901 through FEMA as part of the new certification 

requirements for emergency management coordinators 

• Conducted forcible entry training at Jeffersonville Fire Department 

• Completed hazardous materials operations and blood borne pathogens refresher class 

• Met with Mike Heffrich of Moyer’s Restoration to discuss board up services in our 

Township 

• Met with Township Manager to discuss business license program 

• Met with Bill Hine to discuss Deputy Fire Marshal duties 

 

Notes:  



 

 

 

 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PARKS AND RECREATION 

 
MONTHLY REPORT  

December 2022 
 

Administration: 

• Daily communication with Joe Chillano, Director of Public Works, to discuss job tasks/duties for   

parks crew.   

• Attended the staff meeting. 

• Transfer monthly CCFee report. 

• Met with Mike Nester and Zach about the supplies and decorations that are needed for the Tree 

Lighting event. 

• Met with the Park and Recreation staff throughout the month to prepare for future programs/trips. 

• Worked on preparing for Community Tree Lighting event with Karen Barron, Karen Hegedus 

and Rylie Cox (intern)– set-up itinerary, supplies ordered, meetings with public works staff, met 

with the LP Police Chief, met with the Fire Marshal, memo to the Fire Department to confirm the 

trucks and their placement, ordered sponsorship sign, booklets made, confirm optimist personnel 

for the event. Friday- Set up, run, and break down the Tree Lighting event. 

• Residents came out and thoroughly enjoyed themselves during the 14th Annual Tree Lighting 

Event! There was wonderful music sung by the Arcola Chorus and Macrina Academy of Dance 

put on a wonderful dance performance while residents enjoyed hot chocolate, cookies, and candy 

canes! Thank you to all who helped make this possible especially the Lower Providence 

Township Fire Department, Lower Providence Police Department, all our volunteers and Santa! 

• This year we included a new event the night before the Tree Lighting festivities. We included Pet 

Photos with Santa at the Winter Wonderland display. It was so well received this year; we are 

going to continue to offer this event again next year. A special “thank you” to Gary Brown, for 

volunteering his time to be Santa! 

• This year we would like to thank everyone who participated in the 2022 “Caring & Sharing and 

“Angel Tree” programs. The generosity was amazing; it helped brighten the holidays for so many 

families in our community! A special thank you to Karen Barron and Rylie Cox (intern) for all 

their hard work organizing the program. With the addition of Rylie coming on board, we were 

able to add two more families to partake in the program.  

• We offered a Red Cross Babysitting Course on December 3rd; we had 18 children participated in 

class. 

• Prepare and lead the Park Board Meeting. I also would like to thank Jean Akers, Park Board 

member, for her service over the years.  

• I attended a monthly meeting for Montgomery County Senior Games. We will continue to meet 

as a committee monthly to prepare for the games. The Senior Games will begin the first week in 

May.  

• Prepare for the 2023 Summer Camp Program.  

• We sold 104 discounted Movie Tavern tickets in December. Movie Tavern tickets are sold for 

$8.50 year -round.  

• We sold 84 discounted Regal Movie ticket. Movie tickets are sold at a discounted price of $10.00 

per ticket year- round. 

• We continue to offer Memorial Donation Program which allows residents to purchase a bench, a 

tree, or a brick in a loved one’s honor and have it placed in a special location in one of our 

beautiful parks.  

• We continue to offer our Hometown Heroes Program and have been replacing the banners 

throughout Eagleville Park as they are purchased. 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

All Parks/ Facilities Maintenance: 

• Continue to communicate with Mike Nester and Zach on any matters that need attention over the 

winter months. 

• Trash is picked up weekly or as needed at area parks. 

• Continue to check and replenish Mutt Mitts in area parks. 

• Continue to inspect area parks daily and make repairs as needed. 

• We cleaned and reorganized the barn. We made room to store the new equipment and camp 

supplies. 

• Parks staff will continue to oversee all area parks over the winter months. 

• Parks guys took the remaining donated food items from the Shoemaker House to area shelters. 

 

Eagleville Park: 

• Installed a brick at the memorial. 

• Parks Department took down the holiday displays and decorations and returned them to storage. 

 

Pond View Park: 

• We had a tree down at Pond View Park. It was cut up and area was cleaned up. 

 

 Upcoming Programs:  

•  Firebirds Theatre Acting Class Session 

• Line Dancing Fusion Class 

• Shining Knights Chess Club 

• Scrapbooking Fun Class 

• Pottery Heart Workshop 

• Kids Pottery Class 

• Casino Trip  

• Washington Trip  

 

Daily Tasks:  

• Return calls and emails daily. 

• Respond to requests from the residents.  

• Multiple meetings with Karen Hegedus, Karen Barron, and Rylie Cox regarding winter/spring 

programs as well as ongoing programs and events. 

• Continue to participate in Zoom/ in person meetings and webinar with PRPS.  

• Update P & R web page, Facebook, Instagram, MyRec and the marquee as needed 

 

Respectfully Submitted,  

 

Jane C. Delaney 

Director of Parks and Recreation 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
Submitted By: Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 
POLICE FLEET  Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Miles Traveled 23,859 23,870 23,570 21,513 21,134 280,246 

 
   

   

INCIDENTS Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Police Activity (CAD) 2,158 2,133 2,064 2,110 2,019 23,298 

  

   
   

ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Traffic Stops 564 457 295 381 354 4,861 

Traffic Citations 178 177 170 177 175 1,590 

Non-Traffic Citations 11 7 18 13 5 114 

Criminal Arrests 46 30 25 23 24 397 

Foot and Bike Patrols 237 228 176 184 188 2276 

Traffic Details 163 133 92 115 105 1612 

Public Contacts (Minimum) 1074 954 848 920 874 10,588 

Formal Personnel Complaints 0 0 0 2 0 3 

Personnel Compliments 5 5 3 3 6 35 

  

   
   

JUVENILE CONTACTS Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Juvenile Contacts 51 41 44 55 49 548 

Juveniles Petitioned 1 1 2 1 0 11 

Warnings Issued 15 6 10 18 9 129 

Citations Issued 2 1 1 5 0 22 

Referral to Other Agencies 2 0 1 0 3 15 

  

   
   

ACCIDENTS Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Total Number of Accidents 41 42 48 73 72 580 

Reportable Accidents 12 18 17 23 29 208 

Non-Reportable Accidents 29 24 31 50 43 372 

 
 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 
 

ALARM RESPONSES Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Total Alarms 40 73 47 61 54 673 

Security Alarms 24 41 27 40 33 461 

Fire Alarms 16 32 20 21 21 212 

 

   
   

DETECTIVE DIVISION Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Investigations 77 37 26 28 47 534 

 

   
   

SUBPOENAS FOR COURT  Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

District Court 38-1-20 45 125 67 38 78 684 

Montgomery County  3 6 4 4 10 57 

All Others 0 1 0 0 0 10 

 

   
   

DUI TASK FORCE Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 64 30 8 0 0 134 

 

   
   

AGGRESSIVE DRIVING Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 24 0 0 0 78 

  

   
   

DRUG TASK FORCE Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 0 0 0 0 0 66 

 

   
   

PA LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Total 

Reimbursed Overtime Hours 24 24 21 0 0 139 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Phone:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

Michael Jackson, Chief of Police 

 

 

 

The following is a list of Community Relations details for December 2022:   

 

On Tuesday, December 13, Sgt. Stead presented several drug and alcohol lessons in 8th-grade health 

classes at the Arcola Intermediate School. 

 

On Wednesday, December 14, Sgt. Stead and Montgomery County Detective Lieutenant Paul Bradbury 

gave several drug presentations for the entire Methacton High School junior class. 

 

On Thursday, December 15, Lt. Hopkins and Sgt. Stead participated in the 27th Annual Lt. Patty Simon’s 

Law Enforcement Food Drive by delivering and unloading a tractor-trailer full of nonperishable goods 

to the Salvation Army in Norristown, PA.  

 

On Monday, December 19, Sgt. Stead and Montgomery County Detective Lieutenant Paul Bradbury 

gave several drug presentations for the entire Methacton High School senior class. 

 

The following is a list of notable TSU activities for December 2022:   

 

A total of one hundred and twelve (112) Bus Patrol submissions resulted in sixty-four (64) civil citations 

being issued to drivers passing school buses with their red lights flashing.  

 

There were no traffic complaints made by residents during the month. 

 

Traffic studies were conducted in the 35 MPH and 40 MPH speed limit zones of Level Road indicating 

no need for additional enforcement or other traffic calming measures.  

 

Youth Aid Panel: 

 

There were three (3) juveniles submitted to the Montgomery County District Attorney’s Office Youth 

Aid Panel Program during the month.   

 

Curfew: 

 

There were three (3) violations of the Lower Providence Township curfew ordinance. 
 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

MONTHLY REPORT 

DECEMBER 2022 

Below is a list of some items that the Public Works Department accomplished during the month of 

December. 

• Meet with Jane Delaney daily to review/ discuss departmental needs 

• All PA One call notifications were reviewed, field marked and responded to appropriately 

• Director reviewed road opening permits, performed inspections where required  

• The department completed various and multiple building maintenance tasks  

• Street signs were repaired/replaced 

• Meet with PW Foreman and Interim Parks Crew Leader to discuss work assignments and 

scheduling 

• Director had several meetings with staff on various topics 

• Mechanics performed routine maintenance on Township fleet and equipment 

• Director approved bills associated with the department 

• Janitor cleaned our buildings during the month of December 

• PW & Parks guys did trash runs twice this week in our Parks. Every Monday and Friday 

• Director returned phone calls and emails addressing residents’ concerns  

• Director worked on the monthly report 

• Storm sewer inlets were cleaned prior to any rainstorms 

• Multiple storm sewer inlet on various Twp roadways were repaired in place. Work associated 

includes cleaning out the inlet, repairing with brick, lentels and concrete. Replacing the top and 

restoration work. 

• We are now receiving our money from FEMA, for the work which took place during Hurricane 

Ida 

• Traffic signals and streetlights were repaired during the month of December 

• I continued to work with McMahon and Twp Manager on the APS installation for 

Parklane/Ridge and Eagleville traffic signal, quotes are starting to come in for the work  

• Parks members inspected all playground equipment during the month  

• We have begun working on vehicles and items that will need to be sent to auction   

• Our PW staff is constantly prepping all our fleet for any winter weather events 

• Many crew members worked the tree lighting event and also did the cleanup work 

• Fabricated steel inlet risers for 2023 Rd Reconstruction Projects 

• The guys helped with the annual caring and sharing program 

• We also donated a hand and goods to the annual Patty Simons food drive 



• Twp personnel were involved in the heating oil spill which occurred along Apple Valley Rd 

• One of the most essential duties of a second-class township is to ensure to the best of our 

abilities that roadways are safe for the traveling public. Especially during winter weather events 

as crews are called upon to salt and plow the roadways as conditions deteriorate   

• We had three salting events during the month of December. A wintry mix occurred 12/15, 

freezing rain event was 12/22 and a rapid freeze occurred 12/23 

• After winter events all equipment is washed, greased and repaired as needed, this step is very 

important to maintain a high level of service when equipment is put to the test  

   

 

 

 

 Respectfully submitted, 

 Joseph R. Chillano 

      

 

 



100 Parklane Drive  Eagleville, PA 19403  Phone: 610-539-8020  Fax: 610-539-
6347 www.lowerprovidence.org 

 

 

January 13, 2023 
 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
Preliminary/Final Plan Major Land Development: LD-22-07 – Audubon Land 
Development-Square 5 Amended Plan 
 
90 Day Clock:  Waived by Applicant 
 
Requested Action:  Consideration of preliminary-final plan. 
 
Plan Summary: For your consideration is a plan from Audubon Land Development-Square 
5, proposing to amend the development of Audubon Square V. The amended design 
expands Building 5 from a 27,760 sf to 144,000 self-storage facility; expands Building 1 
from 15,900 sf to 21,000 sf of retail; adds Building 10 with existing 21,340 sf to the plan; 
adds new Building 8 for Restaurant 2,661 sf and Retail Use 3,739 sf; and adds Building 9 for 
Restaurant Use 7,350 sf. 
 
Waivers: 

 
§123-31 Rights of Ways. We request a waiver from providing an Ultimate Right of Way 
on Rittenhouse Road at this time.  Any future land development in the area of 
Rittenhouse Road will provide the required right of way at that time.  

 
§123-32 Curbs and storm sewers. We request a waiver from providing curbs and 
storm sewers along Rittenhouse Road and Egypt Road. Any future land development 
along Rittenhouse Road and Egypt Road will provide the appropriate curbs and storm 
sewers at that time.  

 
§123-33 Sidewalks. We request a waiver from providing sidewalks along Rittenhouse 
Road and Egypt Road. Any future land development along Rittenhouse Road and 
Egypt Road will provide the appropriate sidewalks at that time.  
 
§123-36.A.(2)(d) Driveways. We request a waiver to allow Access Drive C (which will 
be extended to Eisenhower Road) to be closer than 5’ from the property line at its 
intersection with Norris Hall Road.  

 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/


100 Parklane Drive  Eagleville, PA 19403  Phone: 610-539-8020  Fax: 610-539-
6347 www.lowerprovidence.org 

 

§123-37.C Parking. We request a waiver regarding the landscaping the parking lot 
islands. The parking lots to the north of Buildings 5, 6 and 7 are over the Transco Gas 
Pipeline easement. We are not permitted to plant trees within this easement. The 
required trees, based on area of paving, are provided just south of the easement along 
the edge of the easement.  
 
§123-37.L(2)(a) Planting Strip. We request a waiver to not provide a planting strip 
between Buildings 8 and 9. This area is too narrow to add a landscape median without 
losing a row of parking spaces which are needed for the businesses. The requirement 
is to provide a planting strip for parking Audubon Square 5 October 19, 2022 Page 2 of 
2 areas between 50 and 150 spaces and we have 52 spaces in this area. In lieu of 
providing the landscape median, we could lose three parking spaces, but it was felt 
that keeping three extra parking spaces for the commercial uses was more important 
to the users of the businesses.  
 
§123-37.M(2)(b) Driveway Width. We request a waiver to allow the driveway width 
for Access Drive D to be 24’ wide instead of 28’ wide to match the existing width of 
this driveway. Also, the extension of Access Drive C from Norris Hall Lane to 
Eisenhower Road is designed as 24’ wide since we are sliding in this road extension in 
a previously developed area and a wider road would eliminate the parking for the 
building.  
 
§123-143 Land use Design Manual, Section 1.1.4 Trails. We request a waiver to 
construct the relocated trail along Access Drive C with an 8’ width instead of a 10’ 
width to match the previously constructed trail. 

 
Current letters: *see attached of the letters 

• Bursich Associates, December 7, 2022 
• Woodrow and Associates, January 11, 2023 
• McMahon Associates, December 23, 2022 
• Police Chief, September 26, 2022 
• LP Fire Marshal, January 13, 2023 
• LPTPC Minutes, October 26, 2022  

 
Review Comment Summary 

1. Lower Providence Planning Commission recommended granting of all 
requested waivers, and approval for revised final plan.  

2. Norris Hall Rd will be extended to Access Road C in Phase 2 and to Egypt 
Road by 2024.  

3. Elements of environmental sustainability have been included in the design.  
4. Pedestrian connections have been added  
5. It is understood that the proposed revised plan includes sit-down restaurants, 

not drive-thru. 
6. The alignment of Access Road C is to be changed  
7. Transportation design elements raised in McMahon Associates’ letter of 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/


100 Parklane Drive  Eagleville, PA 19403  Phone: 610-539-8020  Fax: 610-539-
6347 www.lowerprovidence.org 

 

October 17, 2022, have been revised. 
8. McMahon recommends that a post construction study be done for the 

intersection of Avenue D and Forge Avenue within three months of full 
occupancy of all buildings.   

 
Impact Fees: 

1. Traffic Impact: $23,514.78 
2. Park and Rec: $257,359.90 

 Commercial 21,340 SF@1.10/SF = $  23,474.00 
 Office  72,190 SF@1.77/SF = $127,776.30 
 Retail  24,739 SF@1.10/SF = $  27,212.90 
 Warehouse 99,960 SF@0.76/SF = $  75,969.60 
 Restaurant   2,661 SF@1.10/SF = $    2,927.10 
 

 
 
 

http://www.lowerprovidence.org/
mailto:SF@1.10/SF
mailto:SF@1.77/SF
mailto:SF@1.10/SF
mailto:SF@0.76/SF
mailto:SF@1.10/SF
























































 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5900   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

DATE:   January 13, 2023 

 

TO: Michael Mrozinski 
Director of Community Development 

 

FROM:  Michael Rohlfing 
Fire Marshal 

 

SUBJECT: Plan Review for Audubon Square 5 

  

 

 

After reviewing page 47 only, as directed, there are no requirements at this time. 

 

Please contact me should you have any questions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  







































































































 

{01567745;V1}1 
 

LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, PENNSYLVANIA 

RESOLUTION No. 2023 - 09 

 
WHEREAS, Providence Greene Home Owners’ Association (hereinafter referred to as 

“Association”) has submitted a request to amend the Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, 

Easements, Charges and Liens dated April 15, 1994 for a development located within Lower 

Providence Township (hereinafter referred to as the “Township”) known as Providence Greene; 

and 

WHEREAS, The Cutler Group, Inc. ("Developer'') was the owner of the real property 

located in the Township of Lower Providence, County of Montgomery, Commonwealth of 

Pennsylvania, upon which real property Developer constructed a residential community 

consisting of 180 townhouse dwelling units and 5 single family detached dwelling units, together 

with Common Open Space and facilities for the benefit of such community; and 

WHEREAS, the Developer created the Association with certain rights, obligations and 

limitations on both the Association and owners of real property located therein pursuant to a 

Declaration of Covenants, Restrictions, Easements, Charges and Liens dated April 15, 1994 and 

filed in the Montgomery County Recorder of Deeds Book 5076, Page 762, et. seq. (hereinafter 

referred to as the "Original Declaration"); and 

WHEREAS, in 2005, the Association recorded an Amended and Restated Declaration of 

Covenants, Restrictions, Easements, Charges and Liens (hereinafter referred to as the “1st 

Amended Declaration”); and 

WHEREAS, the Association desires to amend and restate the Original Declaration and 

the 1st Amended Declaration to clarify certain issues, namely to remove certain properties from 



 

{01567745;V1}2 
 

the Association, but to otherwise maintain the purpose of the Association; and 

WHEREAS, in order to amend the Original Declaration and/or the 1st Amended 

Declaration, the Original Declaration requires that the Association first obtain the Township’s 

approval of the proposed amendment to the 1st Amended Declaration; and 

WHEREAS, the Township is willing to approve the request to amend the Original 

Declaration and the 1st Amended Declaration to remove the five (5) single family lots from the 

Association, subject to certain conditions.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED, by the Board of Supervisors 

of Lower Providence Township this 19th day of January, 2023, that said request for approval 

of the amendment to the Original Declaration and the 1st Amended Declaration is 

GRANTED, subject to the following conditions:  

1. The lots to be removed from the Association are five (5) single family lots, and are 

those identified as lots 181-185 in the Final Record Plan prepared by Alan C. Breyer 

of Yerkes Associates, Inc., dated January 23, 1990, last revised February 14, 1995, a 

copy of which is attached hereto, incorporated herein and labeled Exhibit “A”. 

2. Any and all improvements for which the Association is currently responsible for all 

maintenance, repair and replacement, including but not limited to all open space, 

stormwater facilities and the private roadways known as “Greene’s Meadow Drive” 

and “Greene’s Way Circle,” along with all associated rights of way, curbs and 

sidewalks, shall remain in the full care, custody, ownership and control of the 

Association. 

3. No additional or further maintenance obligations shall be imposed upon the Township 

by way of this approval, including but not limited to any maintenance obligations for 



 

{01567745;V1}3 
 

any curbs, sidewalks, rights of way, roadways, open space, stormwater facilities or 

other improvements that are, were or shall in the future become the property or 

responsibility of the Association.   

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township that approval is further subject to the condition that a final recorded copy of 

the Amended Declaration shall be provided to the Township Solicitor immediately 

upon receipt by the Association.   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence 

Township that approval is further conditioned upon acceptance of the conditions contained 

herein by the Association and signifying acceptance thereof by signing a copy of this 

Resolution. In the event that the execution of this Resolution is not delivered to the Township 

within ten (10) days from receipt, it shall be deemed that the Association does not accept 

these conditions and the approval conditioned upon his,  her or its acceptance is hereby 

revoked, and the aforementioned Association’s request is considered to be denied for the reasons 

set forth above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

{01567745;V1}4 
 

RESOLVED and APPROVED this 19th day of January, 2023. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER 

PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

 
 
 
 

By:    

E.J. Mentry, Secretary                     Cara Coless, Chair



 

{01567745;V1}5 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF CONDITIONS: 

 

The Providence Greene Home Owners’ Association, the Applicant for the above referenced 

request related to the development known as Providence Green, Lower Providence Township 

does hereby acknowledge and accept the conditions set forth in the Approval Resolution issued 

by the Board of Supervisors of Lower Providence Township and accept the conditions contained 

herein as recited above. 
 
 
Witness:      Applicant:  Providence Greene Home  

Owners’ Association  
          
 
 
              
_______________________________________       
       
Name:        Name:       
 
 
 
Title:       Title:      
 
 
 
 
Date:       Date:      
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

INTER-OFFICE CORRESPONDENCE 

 
TO:              E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

FROM:        Joseph R. Chillano, Public Works Director 

 

CC:             Rich Lafiata, Director of Finance                    

 

DATE:        January 13, 2023 

 

SUBJECT: Authorization to sell equipment and/or vehicles at auction 

============================================================= 

I would like to obtain authorization from the Board of Supervisors to sell the following equipment and/or 

vehicles at an upcoming auction. 

 
1. 2013 Ford Explorer: 146,634 miles,  

 

2. 2018 Ford Police Interceptor: 112,894 miles,  

 

3. 2000 Ford F350 Bucket Truck: 77,930 miles,  

 

4. 2007 Dodge Charger: 121,800 miles,  

 

5. Dog kennels: Police no longer utilize K9 units 

 

6. Police car seats  

 

7. Police light bars for vehicles: Don’t fit newer SUVs 

 

8. Police car rear cages (cage between officer and the back seat): Don’t fit newer SUVs 

 

9. Police gun boxes for vehicles 

 

10. Eight large truck tires: 11R22.5 average depth 16/32 

 

11. Three tailgate pre-wet brine tanks: No longer in operation 

 

12. Three-point hitch ballfield planer 

 

13. Three-point hitch drag 

 

14. Three tow-behind turf rollers 

 

15. Three-point hitch seeder  

  

All vehicles and equipment will be brought to J.J. Kane Auctioneers located in Plymouth 

Meeting, Pa. This is an absolute auction held monthly. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Joseph R. Chillano  



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

SUBJECT: FEMA Agent Resolution (1/19/23 Agenda Item #4.d.) 

 

DATE:  January 13, 2023 

 

 

I am requesting BOS approval of Resolution 2023-10 at the upcoming meeting on January 19. 

This resolution designates the Township Manager (E.J. Mentry) as the authorized agent to sign 

all required forms and documents in relation to the FEMA buyout program resulting from 

Hurricane Ida. This resolution was previously adopted by the BOS on December 16, 2021 

designating then Interim Township Manager Gregg Schuster as the authorized agent. The 

resolution needs to be updated in advance of the anticipated settlement of the buyouts (in 

approximately 4-5 months). 

 

Included in your meeting binders is an email from Susan Mazzitelli, our Flood Mitigation Project 

Manager for the FEMA applications, requesting this resolution. Also included is the previous 

resolution from 2021 for reference, a copy of the model deed restriction that will be used for all 

of the properties in the buyout program, and the estimated budget and timeline for the Lower 

Providence Township program. 

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

 



1

E.J. Mentry

From: Susan Mazzitelli <susanmazzitelli@gmail.com>
Sent: Tuesday, January 3, 2023 12:39 PM
To: E.J. Mentry
Cc: Michael W. Mrozinski; Gerald Burke
Subject: Lower Providence Township FEMA HMGP 4506 Acquisition Application 
Attachments: Resolution 2021-30 Designation of HMGP Agent.pdf; 3 - Bank Account Verification 

Form - DGM 04 Feb 2022.pdf; 4 - Designation of Agent.pdf; 5 - fema_form-20-16C.pdf; 
6 - Assurances - Acquisition Demolition Projects- SF424D-V1.1 (1).pdf; 1 - FEMA Model 
Deed Restriction - Disaster 4506 Attachment E.docx; 2 - Attachment C - FFATA Data 
Sheet.pdf; Lower Providence Twp. HMGP 4506 Budget & timeline with M&A - 
Attachment B.xlsx

Follow Up Flag: Follow up
Flag Status: Flagged

Hi E.J.,  
 
The Acquisition application is in the pipeline to be approved soon.  Below you will find grant forms to be filled 
out/signed and the Township will need to open an interest bearing bank account which grant funds will be deposited 
into and all project invoices will be paid out of.   
 
Gregg Schuster, Interim Township Manager was appointed Designation of Agent for the project.  Now that you are 
Township Manager, your Board will need to appoint you as the Designated Agent to sign all grant documents.  I attached 
the DOA attached to the application for your reference.  I filled out the HMGP 4506 Budget & timeline with M&A - 
Attachment B for you.  
 
If you have any questions about the forms, let mw know. 
 
Please return all completed/signed forms to Gerald Burke at PEMA & copy me.  
 
Susan  
 
Susan Mazzitelli, CFM 
Lower Providence Township Flood Mitigation Project Manager 
3 South Homestead Drive | Yardley, PA 19067 | Mobile: (267) 391-
9027       susan.mazzitelli@gmail.com 

 
 
 
 

Begin forwarded message: 
 
From: "Burke, Gerald" <gburke@pa.gov> 
Subject: Request to Complete forms 
Date: December 20, 2022 at 10:59:24 AM EST 
To: "susanmazzitelli@gmail.com" <susanmazzitelli@gmail.com> 
 
  



2

Subrecipient, please find attached several forms that you will need to complete prior to the anticipated 
award of your grant.  We are sending these forms to you prior to your award so we can streamline the 
process to a much easier path to getting the required grant agreement in your hands for signature(s).   

**** These forms will need to be completed and returned to us as soon as possible. 
**** By receiving this email, does not mean you have been FEMA awarded at this point. 

1 – Model Deed Restriction, this form can only be completed once you the sub-grantee have a fully 
executed grant agreement with the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania. The fully executed date is required 
on this form.  This form will be incorporated in the newly recorded deed one the properties are 
acquired.  
2 – Attachment C FFATA form, this form needs to be completed and returned to PEMA as required 
before the grant agreement can be drafted and sent to you the sub-recipient for signature.  Please make 
sure the UEI number is correct. If you do not have a UEI number, follow the directions on page 1.  
3 – Bank Account Verification form, each grant needs to have a stand along interest bearing checking 
account open to receive deposits and manage check debits.  Therefore, this form needs to be completed 
with all bank account information included.  Form must be filled out in its entirety or will not be 
accepted.  
4 – Designation of Agent form, must be completed and returned to PEMA as soon possible. This form 
must be accompanied with the municipal resolution naming the Applicant Agent. The applicant Agent is 
normally the individual that will be managing the day-to-day activity of the grant.  
5 – CRLDS and ORM, and DFWR, form must be completed certifying you agree to the term set forth in 
this requirement. Form must be return to PEMA as soon as possible and will become part of the 
Executed Grant Agreement. 
6 – Assurances-Burden of Collection, form must be completed and signed agreeing to all parts of this act 
as describe on the form. Form must be signed and returned to us as soon as possible. 
 7 – Budget & Timeline with M&A, this spreadsheet will need to be completed before the grant 
agreement can be drafted. Your PEMA project officer will assist in the completion of this form. The 
numbers on this form must be accurate to what has been entered into the Federal NEMIS System.  

Gerald D. Burke, Emergency Management Specialist 
Hazard Mitigation Project Officer 
PA Emergency Management Agency 
EM Mitigation, Insurance, and Resilient 
Communities (MIRC) Program Office 
1310 Elmerton Avenue | Harrisburg, PA 17110 
Phone: 717-651-2175 | Fax: 717-651-2150 
Cell: 717-562-1101 
pema.pa.gov | osfc.pa.gov 

Like us on facebook.com/PEMAHQ and facebook.com/PAOSFC 
Follow us on Twitter @PEMAHQ and @PEMADirector 
Learn how to Be Informed, Be Prepared, and Be Involved at www.ReadyPA.org 



3

This e-mail message, including any attachments, is intended for the sole use of the individual(s) and 
entity(ies) to whom it is addressed and may contain information that is privileged, confidential and 
exempt from disclosure under applicable law. If you are not the intended addressee, nor authorized to 
receive for the intended addressee, you are notified that you may not use, copy, disclose or distribute 
any information contained in this e-mail message. If you have received this message in error, 
immediately notify the sender and delete the message.” 



DESIGNATION OF AGENT 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-10

BE IT RESOLVED BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP

THAT 
___________________

(Name) (Title) 

is hereby authorized to execute for and in behalf of 

a public entity established under the laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, all required forms and 
documents for the purpose of obtaining financial assistance for the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 
(HMGP) or the Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM) program under the Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and 
Emergency Assistance Act (Public Law 93-288 as amended by Public Law 100-707) or the Flood Mitigation 
Assistance (FMA) program, Repetitive Flood Claims (RFC) program or Severe Repetitive Loss (SRL) 
program under the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. 4001 et seq), National Flood Insurance 
Reform Act of 1994 (Public Law 103-325) and the Flood Insurance Reform Act of 2004 (Public Law 108-
264), as pertains to federal mitigation grant programs indicated below (check all that apply): 

□ HMGP □ PDM

Passed and approved this ______ day of __ ---� 20 

I, 

CERTIFICATION 

duly appointed  
(Title) 

of   Township, do hereby certify that the above is a true and correct copy of 
(Public Entity) 

a resolution passed and approved by the  Board of Supervisors
(Governing Body) 

day of 

(Official Position) 

PEMA Application 

202 

(Date) 

Designation of Agent 

Signature

□ FMA

TOWNSHIP  MANAGERE.J. MENTRY

Lower Providence Township

E.J. Mentry Township Manager
(Name)

Lower Providence

on the _______________ _______





Attachment E 
 

FEMA Model Deed Restriction - Disaster 4506 

 
Exhibit A is FEMA’s Model Deed Restrictions that support 44 C.F.R. Part 80 requirements. 

Applications requesting mitigation assistance to acquire properties for open space purposes 

must include a copy of the deed restriction language proposed to meet these requirements. 

 

The deed conveying the property to the locality must reference and incorporate Exhibit A (or 

equivalent name). Any variation from the model deed restriction can only be made with prior 

approval from FEMA’s Office of Chief Counsel. Such requests should be made to the FEMA 

Regional Administrator through the relevant State or Tribal Office. Exhibit A shall be attached 

to the deed when recorded. 

 

Exhibit A 

 

In reference to the property or properties (“Property”) conveyed by the Deed between *property 

owner] participating in the federally assisted acquisition project (“the Grantor”) and *the local 

government, (“the Grantee”), its successors and assigns: 

 

SELECT THE APPROPRIATE MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM AND DELETE ALL 

OTHERS: 

 

WHEREAS, the Flood Mitigation Assistance Program, as authorized in the National Flood 

Insurance Reform Act of 1994, sections 1366 and 1367, (42 USC §§ 4104c, 4104d), identifies 

the use of FMA funds for planning and carrying out activities designed to reduce the risk of 

flood damage to structures insurable under the National Flood Insurance Program. 

 

WHEREAS, The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, ("The 

Stafford Act"), 42 U.S.C. § 5121 et seq., identifies the use of disaster relief funds under § 5170c, 

Hazard Mitigation Grant Program, including the acquisition and relocation of structures in the 

floodplain. 

 

WHEREAS, The Robert T. Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency Assistance Act, ("The 

Stafford Act"), 42 U.S.C. § 5121 et seq., identifies the use of pre-disaster mitigation grants under 

§ 5133, Pre-Disaster Mitigation, to assist States and local governments in implementing cost- 

effective hazard mitigation measures to reduce injuries, loss of life, and damage and destruction 

of property. 

 

WHEREAS, the Severe Repetitive Loss Pilot Program, as authorized under Sections 

1361(A) of the National Flood Insurance Act of 1968 (NFIA, or “the Act”), 42 USC 4011 

et seq., as amended by the National Flood Insurance Reform Act of 1994; Public Law 103- 

325, and the Bunning-Bereuter-Blumenauer Flood Insurance Reform Act of 2004, Public 

Law 108-264, identifies the use of SRL funds for uses that reduce flood damages to 

properties insured under the National Flood Insurance Program; 

 

 



Attachment E 
 

WHEREAS, the mitigation grant program provides a process for a local government, through 

the State, to apply for federal funds for mitigation assistance to acquire interests in property, 

including the purchase of structures in the floodplain, to demolish and/or remove the structures, 

and to maintain the use of the Property as open space in perpetuity. 

 

Whereas Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has applied for and been awarded such funding 

from the Department of Homeland Security, Federal Emergency Management Agency and 

has entered into a mitigation grant program Grant Agreement dated August 8, 2021, with 

FEMA and herein incorporated by reference, making it a mitigation grant program grantee. 

 

Whereas the Property is in [Village/City/County], and [Village/City/County] participates in 

the National Flood Insurance Program and is in good standing with NFIP as of the date of the 

Deed. 

Whereas the [local government], acting by and through the [local government] Board, has 

applied for and been awarded federal funds pursuant to an agreement with the Commonwealth 

of Pennsylvania dated [date], and herein incorporated by reference, making it a mitigation 

grant program subgrantee. 

 

WHEREAS, the terms of the mitigation grant program statutory authorities, Federal program 

requirements consistent with 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the Grant Agreement, and the State-local 

Agreement require that the Grantee agree to conditions that restrict the use of the land to open 

space in perpetuity in order to protect and preserve natural floodplain values. 

 

Now, therefore, the grant is made subject to the following terms and conditions: 

 

1. Terms. Pursuant to the terms of the Hazard Mitigation Grant program statutory authorities, 

Federal program requirements consistent with 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the Grant Agreement, and the 

State- local Agreement, the following conditions and restrictions shall apply in perpetuity to 

the Property described in the attached deed and acquired by the Grantee pursuant to FEMA 

program requirements concerning the acquisition of property for open space: 

 

a. Compatible uses. The Property shall be dedicated and maintained in perpetuity as open 

space for the conservation of natural floodplain functions. Such uses may include parks for 

outdoor recreational activities; wetlands management; nature reserves; cultivation; grazing; 

camping (except where adequate warning time is not available to allow evacuation); 

unimproved, unpaved parking lots; buffer zones; and other uses consistent with FEMA 

guidance for open space acquisition, Hazard Mitigation Assistance, Requirements for Property 



Attachment E 
 

Acquisition and Relocation for Open Space. 

 
b. Structures. No new structures or improvements shall be erected on the Property other than: 

i. A public facility that is open on all sides and functionally related to a designated open 

space or recreational use; 

 

ii. A public rest room; or 

 

iii. A structure that is compatible with open space and conserves the natural 

function of the floodplain, including the uses described in Paragraph 1.a., above, and 

approved by the FEMA Administrator in writing before construction of the structure 

begins. 

 

Any improvements on the Property shall be in accordance with proper floodplain management 

policies and practices. Structures built on the Property according to paragraph b. of this section 

shall be floodproofed or elevated to at least the base flood level plus 1 foot of freeboard, or 

greater, if required by FEMA, or if required by any State, Tribal, or local ordinance, and in 

accordance with criteria established by the FEMA Administrator. 

 

c. Disaster Assistance and Flood Insurance. No Federal entity or source may provide disaster 

assistance for any purpose with respect to the Property, nor may any application for such 

assistance be made to any Federal entity or source. The Property is not eligible for coverage 

under the NFIP for damage to structures on the property occurring after the date of the property 

settlement, except for pre-existing structures being relocated off the property as a result of the 

project. 

 

d. Transfer. The Grantee, including successors in interest, shall convey any interest in the 

Property only if the FEMA Regional Administrator, through the State, gives prior written 

approval of the transferee in accordance with this paragraph. 

 

i. The request by the Grantee, through the State, to the FEMA Regional Administrator must 

include a signed statement from the proposed transferee that it acknowledges and agrees to be 

bound by the terms of this section, and documentation of its status as a qualified conservation 

organization if applicable. 

 

ii. The Grantee may convey a property interest only to a public entity or to a qualified 

conservation organization. However, the Grantee may convey an easement or lease to a private 

individual or entity for purposes compatible with the uses described in paragraph (a), of this 

section, with the prior approval of the FEMA Regional Administrator, and so long as the 

conveyance does not include authority to control and enforce the terms and conditions of this 

section. 

 

iii. If title to the Property is transferred to a public entity other than one with a conservation 

mission, it must be conveyed subject to a conservation easement that shall be recorded with the 

deed and shall incorporate all terms and conditions set forth in this section, including the 



Attachment E 
 

easement holder’s responsibility to enforce the easement. This shall be accomplished by one of 

the following means: 

 
a) The Grantee shall convey, in accordance with this paragraph, a conservation easement 

to an entity other than the title holder, which shall be recorded with the deed, or at the time 

of title transfer, the Grantee shall retain such conservation easement, and record it with the 

deed. 

iv. Conveyance of any property interest must reference and incorporate the original deed 

restrictions providing notice of the conditions in this section and must incorporate a provision 

for the property interest to revert to the State, Tribe, or local government in the event that the 

transferee ceases to exist or loses its eligible status under this section. 

 

2. Inspection. FEMA, its representatives, and assigns including the state or tribe shall have the 

right to enter upon the Property, at reasonable times and with reasonable notice, for the purpose 

of inspecting the Property to ensure compliance with the terms of this part, the Property 

conveyance and of the grant award. 

 

3. Monitoring and Reporting. Every three years on [date], the Grantee (mitigation grant program 

subgrantee), in coordination with any current successor in interest, shall submit through the State 

to the FEMA Regional Administrator a report certifying that the Grantee has inspected the 

Property within the month preceding the report, and that the Property continues to be maintained 

consistent with the provisions of 44 C.F.R. Part 80, the property conveyance, and the grant 

award. 

 

4. Enforcement. The Grantee (mitigation grant program subgrantee), the State, FEMA, and their 

respective representatives, successors, and assigns, are responsible for taking measures to bring 

the Property back into compliance if the Property is not maintained according to the terms of 44 

C.F.R. Part 80, the property conveyance, and the grant award. The relative rights and 

responsibilities of FEMA, the State, the Grantee, and subsequent holders of the property interest 

at the time of enforcement, shall include the following: 

 

a. The State will notify the Grantee and any current holder of the property interest in 

writing and advise them that they have 60 days to correct the violation. 

i. If the Grantee or any current holder of the property interest fails to demonstrate a good faith 

effort to come into compliance with the terms of the grant within the 60-day period, the State 

shall enforce the terms of the grant by taking any measures it deems appropriate, including but 

not limited to bringing an action at law or in equity in a court of competent jurisdiction. 

 

ii. FEMA, its representatives, and assignees may enforce the terms of the grant by 

taking any measures it deems appropriate, including but not limited to 1 or more of the 

following: 



Attachment E 
 

a) Withholding FEMA mitigation awards or assistance from the State or Tribe, and 

Grantee; and current holder of the property interest. 

b) Requiring transfer of title. The Grantee or the current holder of the property interest shall 

bear the costs of bringing the Property back into compliance with the terms of the grant; or 

c) Bringing an action at law or in equity in a court of competent jurisdiction against any or 

all of the following parties: the State, the Tribe, the local community, and their respective 

successors. 

 

5. Amendment. This agreement may be amended upon signatures of FEMA, the state, and the 

Grantee only to the extent that such amendment does not affect the fundamental and statutory 

purposes underlying the agreement. 

 

6. Severability. Should any provision of this grant or the application thereof to any person or 

circumstance be found to be invalid or unenforceable, the rest and remainder of the provisions 

of this grant and their application shall not be affected and shall remain valid and enforceable. 

[Signed by Grantor(s) and Grantee, witnesses and notarization in accordance with local law.] 

 

 
 

Grantor’s Signature    
 

Date 

 
Name (printed or typed) 

 
Grantee’s Signature    

 

Date    
 

 

 

Grantee’s Name    

 

Grantee’s Title    
 

Last Updated: 

07/27/2012 



Item Name Cost Classification
Unit 

Quantity

Unit of 

Measure
Unit Cost ($)

Cost Estimate 

($)

Certified Appraisals Contractual 9 Each 700.00 $6,300.00

Engineering/Bid Specifications Contractual 9 Each 10,000.00 $90,000.00

Site & Land Acquisition Contractual 1 Each 2,975,000.00 $2,975,000.00

Legal/Closing Costs Other(Legal) 9 Each 14,000.00 $126,000.00

Demolition/Disposal Contractual 9 Each 15,000.00 $135,000.00

Asbestos Testing Contractual 9 Each 750.00 $6,750.00

Asbestos Mitigation Other(Asbestos Mitigation) 9 Each 4,500.00 $40,500.00

Contingency 5% Other (Contingency) 1 Each 169,877.00 $169,877.00

URA Other (URA) 1 Each 7,200.00 $7,200.00

Total Project Cost $3,556,627.00

Federal Share - Project 100% $3,556,627.00

Non-federal Share - Project 0% $0.00

Subrecipient Management Costs - 

(Federal 100%) Pre-Award +PM Other (Project Management)

1 Each ########## $169,877.00

Total Federal & Non-federal $3,726,504.00

Lower Providence Township HMGP 4506-0058

 Acquisition of Private Real Property (Structures and Land)

Estimated Budget

Attachment B



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 
 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219   

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO:  Board of Supervisors 

 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

 

SUBJECT: The Wall That Heals (1/19/23 Agenda Item #4.e.) 

 

DATE:  January 13, 2023 

 

 

Pursuant to my email to the Board of Supervisors dated 12/22/2022 (Subject “RESPONSE 

REQUESTED: Vietnam War Memorial Collaboration with Upper Prov.”), I have added a 

discussion item to the 1/19/23 BOS agenda to raise this matter publicly. 

 

I recently met with Tim Tieperman, Upper Providence Township (UPT) Manager, to discuss a 

potential partnership for The Wall That Heals (Vietnam Veterans Memorial Replica). Upper 

Providence has been selected to host The Wall from October 26-29, 2023. The location has not 

yet been determined. The UPT Director of Parks and Recreation is taking the lead on the project, 

so I’ve tasked Jane Delaney to coordinate with her for logistics and to gather more information. 

Other than finalizing the specific location for the memorial, the main tasks will be volunteer 

recruitment and sponsorships. 

 

The purpose of placing this item on the upcoming agenda is simply to announce the 

collaboration and draw public attention to this great program coming to our area this fall. 

Volunteer recruitment is going to be essential to the success of this program, so the sooner we 

get the word out the better.  

 

At this time, no formal action from the BOS is sought, but there may be a nominal financial 

contribution to be approved at a later date (approximately $1000-2000).  

 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 

 

 



 LOWER PROVIDENCE TOWNSHIP 

100 Parklane Drive  •  Eagleville, PA 19403  •  www.lowerprovidence.org 

Administration: 610 539-8020   •   Fax: 610 539-6347 

Police:  610-539-5901   •   Fax:  610-630-2219  

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Board of Supervisors 

FROM: E.J. Mentry, Township Manager 

SUBJECT: 2023 Board of Supervisors Goals and Strategy (1/19/23 Agenda Item #4.f.) 

DATE:  January 13, 2023 

As discussed briefly at the end of the Reorganization Meeting, the BOS would like to resume 

discussions of strategic/action planning and setting goals and priorities for 2023. The upcoming 

1/19/23 BOS agenda includes an item to begin these conversations. To assist in guiding the 

discussion next week and throughout the year, I’ve compiled a very general list of major topics 

based on feedback and past discussions with the BOS. These items are not in any particular order 

based on priority: 

1. Comprehensive Plan Action/Implementation Planning

a. Upon adoption of the Comprehensive Plan, which is anticipated for either

February or March 2023, we will need to prioritize the implementation goals and

craft an action plan.

2. Grant Planning

a. In conjunction with the above item, the BOS would like to formulate a prioritized

plan for potential grant-funded projects.

3. Role of Township Boards/Commissions/Committees/Councils

a. Discussion on ways to empower Township boards to be more proactive while

simultaneously improving communication and collaboration with the BOS.

4. Business Development

a. Re-establish the Business Development Committee, its role/function, and plans

and priorities for 2023 and beyond.

5. Township Complex/Business Planning

a. Continue discussions and begin formal planning for renovations and

improvements to the Township Building and overall campus plan.

For the 1/19/23 BOS meeting, Chair Coless has suggested we start with discussing the role of the 

Planning Commission (PC), specifically as it relates to the pending adoption of the 

Comprehensive Plan and how the PC can become more involved with the goals and 

implementation of the plan. Included in your meeting binders for reference is a planning series 

guide from the PA Governor’s Center for Local Government Services specifically addressing 

“The Planning Commission in Pennsylvania”. 

Please let me know if you have any questions. 


	Agenda BOS 2023-01-19
	2a - Minutes BOS 2022-12-15
	2a - Minutes EAC 2022-11-21
	2a - Minutes PR 2022-11-15
	2a - Minutes SA 2022-11-14
	2a- Minutes BOS 2023-01-03
	2b - Monthly Reports Dec 2022
	Community Development
	Community Relations
	Finance 
	Fire Marshal
	Parks and Recreation
	Police
	Police

	Public Works

	3a - LD-22-07 ALD-Square5-BOS ExecutiveSummaryPacket-revised
	ADP44F6.tmp
	BOARD OF SUPERVISORS EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	Waivers:
	Current letters: *see attached of the letters
	Review Comment Summary
	Impact Fees:


	3b - LD-22-02 BrightViewLandscape-BOS ExecutiveSummaryPacket-revised
	4a - LD Waiver-SelectPizzaGrill-711 S TrooperRd-BOS ExecutivePacket
	4b - Resolution - Providence Greene HOA amendment (01567745xC305A)
	4c - Memo vehicle and equipment to auction
	4d - FEMA resolution designting agent
	2023.01.13 FEMA Agent Resolution memo - 1.19.23 BOS Meeting
	1 - Susan Mazzitelli Email - FEMA Acquisition Applications
	2 - Resolution 2023-10 Designation of Agent (002)
	3 - Resolution 2021-30 Designation of HMGP Agent
	4 - FEMA Model Deed Restriction - Disaster 4506 Attachment E
	5 - Lower Providence Twp. HMGP 4506 Budget & timeline with M&A - Attachment B

	4e - Wall That Heals Memo
	4f - 23.01.13 BOS Goals and Strategy 2023 memo - 1.19.23 BOS Meeting



